
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETINGAGENDA 
May 7, 2018 

6:00 p.m. 
Commissioner’s Meeting Room – Ground Floor Ste. 16 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
 

I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  
NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – CARL PENNAMON, CHAIR     
DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY     
DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN     
DISTRICT 4 – CRAIG SALMON, VICE-CHAIR     
DISTRICT 5  - DOUG LUKE     
  
 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

 III.    Invocation – District 2 
         
 IV.    Approval of Agenda 
                    
 V.      Consent Agenda –  
1.   Approval of Minutes: 

 Regular Meeting Minutes, April 2, 2018 
 Budget Work Session Minutes, April 16, 2018 

2.   Check Register – Check #’s- 052690 - 53003                  
VI.   Public Hearing  

Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 
ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 
Commissioners.  Following the public hearing, the Board of Commissioners will take action on each 
item presented below.  
 
CANCELLED - A public hearing will be held on case number 2018-TA-001. Applicant Melanie Neal has applied for a 
text amendment to the Jasper County Code of Ordinances to add Tournament Lake to the use table.  
The property is located at 1988 Hwy 212W Monticello, Ga 31064.  Tax Map 033, parcel 069-003.  Current zoning is 
Agricultural (A).   

CANCELLED - Vote Required on Agenda Item - Ordinance Text Amendment, New Business Item 4 - Case Number 
2018-TA-001 before Public Hearing Case Number 2018-SU-001 can be held. 

CANCELLED - A public hearing will be held on Case number 2018-SU-001.  Applicant Melanie Neal has applied for 
a Special Use Permit for a Tournament Lake.  

 
 
 

VIII. Presentations/Delegations – **Proclamation – Older Americans Month**  
Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 
(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens,  county employees or other events by the 
Commissioners.   

VII. County Commissioner Items 

1



 

 

IX.   Regular Agenda 
Old Business:   

1. 911 Radio Communication Update – Transcom Final Payment  
2. 2012 SPLOST Public Works Equipment –Road Broom, Crack Sealer, Flat Bed Approval to Seek 

Bids 
3. Senior Center CDBG Project Update and Approval to Bid 
4. 2018 LMIG Project Selection Approval to Seek Bids 
5. FY 2019 Budget Discussion 

New Business: 
1. Jasper County Health Department Board Appointment – Wiley Jordan 
2. Upper Ocmulgee River RC&D Council Appointment – Jasper County Extension Agent Charlie 

Todd  
3. Georgia State Defense Force Request for Use of County Facilities 
4. Ordinance Text Amendment – Special Use Permit Table – Tournament Lake - Cancelled 
5. Special Use Permit Application – Tournament Lake – 1988 Hwy 212 W. Monticello - Cancelled 
6. Tax Assessor - Freeport Exemption Resolution  
7. Tax Assessor 2018 Digest Overview 
8. Courthouse Security 
9. Fire Rescue Budget Amendment – Funded by Georgia Trauma Commission Grants 
10. Fire Rescue Budget Amendment – Funded by FM Global Grant 
11. Peachtree Recovery Services, Inc. - Property Damage Claims Recovery Service 
12. Jasper County Tornado Siren Warning Policy and Maintenance Plan 
13. Provide Finance Director with Online Banking Approval 

X. County Attorney Items                                 
 
 XI.   County Manager Update 

1. Roads and Bridges 
2. Legislative 
3. Planning 

XII.   Citizen Comments  
The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission for 
not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please be 
courteous of the 3 minute time limit. 

 
XIII. Executive Session 
        
 Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as 
  provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real 
  estate as provided by O.C.G.A.§50-14-3(4); and, Discussion on employment, 
  compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided in O.C.G.A. 
  § 50-14-3(6)   
 
 
   XIV. Adjournment  

2



 

 

Consent Agenda – Item 1 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  May 7, 2018 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 
 

 Regular Meeting Minutes, April 2, 2018 
 Budget Work Session Minutes, April 16, 2018 

 
 

Background: 
 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve minutes for:  
 

 Regular Meeting Minutes, April 2, 2018 
 Budget Work Session Minutes, April 16, 2018 

  

3



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: April 2, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

April 2, 2018 

Regular Meeting Minutes 

6:00 P.M. 

Comm. Pennamon called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Chairman, Carl Pennamon, Bruce Henry, Don Jernigan, Vice-Chairman, Craig 
Salmon, and Doug Luke arrived at 6:15 p.m. 

Staff Present: Mike Benton, County Manager, Clerk Sharon Robinson, and County Attorney, David Ozburn. 

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation: 

District 2, Bruce Henry 

Agenda Approval: 

Comm. Henry made motion approve the agenda as presented, Comm. Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 

Consent Agenda: 

Minutes:  

Comm. Henry made motion to approve the Minutes of February 12, 2018 Called Meeting with noted correction 
to change Chair and Vice Chair, and Comm. Salmon was present via phone; Salmon seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

Comm. Salmon made motion to approve the Work Session Minutes of February 26, 2018, Henry seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

Comm. Henry made motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes of March 5, 2018 with correction noted of 
Morning Hornet Project, Jernigan Seconded; passed unanimously. 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to approve the Called Meeting Minutes of March 12, 2018, Henry seconded; 
passed unanimously. 

Check Register: 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to approve the check register which included check #’s 52441-52689 for 
payment, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

Public Hearing: 

None 

4



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: April 2, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

Commissioner’s Items: 

Salmon:  Noted the Service Delivery Strategy meeting and made a request to put a referendum on the ballot to 
consolidate the City and County. Also would to go ahead and get the Recreation Center and Landfill signs.  

Atty. Ozburn noted he will look into the consolidation referendum procedures. 

Comm. Salmon made motion to request the state to provide signage with the recommendation of Rec. Director 
and County Manager; Henry seconded; Salmon vote yes; Henry, Jernigan, Pennamon all abstained. Motion 
failed. 

Comm. Pennamon suggested it would be better to wait until renovations are done and make all the signs 
uniform. 

Henry: Reminded everyone about Baseball/Softball opening day on Saturday. 

Jernigan: Received an email thanking Public Works for a job well done on Ernest Gibson Road and Shoreline 
Drive. 

Pennamon: Would like to schedule a Work Session to go over Road Plan. DOT will money for 65 miles of 
stripping and signage. Also noted that the Jeep is ready on Funderburg Drive, asked County Manager to pick it 
up.  Asked for an update on Sheriff Vehicles pay-off and Health Dept. bids. 

Mr. Benton noted he has not checked on pay-off and the bids were less than $1500 for the additional. 

Comm. Pennamon questioned where we stand on Comprehensive Plan Meeting. 

Mr. Benton noted he is waiting on Eva Kennedy at NEGRC, no date yet, but there will be one in April. 

Comm. Pennamon noted Sheriff Pope was here and wanted to know if he wanted to talk about Security Issues. 

Sheriff Pope noted since it has to do with Security; it really needed to be discussed in Executive Session. 

Atty. Ozburn clarified since it has to do with Courthouse Security it does qualify for Executive Session. 

Presentations/Delegations: 

None 

Regular Agenda: 

Old Business: 

Update to Language Access Plan (LAP): 

Mr. Benton noted Jasper County was awarded a CDBG grant for the addition and remodeling of the Jasper 
County Senior Center. The CDBG grant is funded from the U.S. Housing and Urban Development Agency thru 
the Georgia Department of Community Affairs.  The Housing and Urban Development Agency requires grant 
recipients to comply with all Federal rules and regulations regarding limited English speaking persons.  The 
plan will enable Jasper County to be in compliance with HUD.  The Jasper County BOC adopted the Language 

5



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: April 2, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

Access Plan at the January 8, 2018 BOC meeting. Revisions to the plan have been made. (A copy of the revised 
plan will be attached and made a part of the official minutes). 
 
Comm. Salmon made motion to adopt Jasper County’s Revised Language Access Plan for Limited English 
Speaking Persons, Jernigan seconded; passed unanimously. 
 

Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) Financing: 

 Comm. Pennamon noted to his understanding we have already received 46 sets and now just need to vote on 
the financing options. 

Comm. Jernigan questioned if we have a plan in place so we don’t have to purchase 46 at one time again. 

Mr. Benton noted they are working on that, the good thing is they do last 15 years; do you want us to start 
immediately. 

Comm. Jernigan noted he would like to see a plan drawn up. 

Mr. Benton noted they can get started on the plan. 

Comm. Henry noted there is some additional money from Jackson Lake Peninsula, he would like to see that 
unbudgeted money put towards these to lower the amount we borrow. 

Mr. Benton noted we have 60 days from the purchase to secure financing with BB&T. 

Comm. Henry mad motion for County Manager to get the total amount of breach and bring back to board; 
Jernigan seconded; Henry, Jernigan, Pennamon, and Luke vote yes; Salmon opposed. Motion passed 4-1. 

Comm. Salmon noted he opposed because we could have went ahead and voted for a certain amount to finance 
and let County Manager let us know the revised amount when he got number. 

2018 LMIG Projects: 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to table this item, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 

New Business: 

Board Appointments – Tax Assessors: 

Ms. Bentley noted that Larry Smith and Mary Alice Carter terms are ending April 17th and May 31st, she has 
advertised the vacancies and did not receive any responses.  Both Mr. Smith and Ms. Carter wish to be 
reappointed. 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to reappoint Larry Smith and Mary Alice Carter for the length of their 
consecutive 3 year terms, Henry seconded; passed unanimously. 

Site Prep - Senior Center Building Project and Recreation Building Project: 

Com. Salmon noted we need to get bids to clear out the entire area except specific trees and get ready for site 
prep so we can see the lay of the land. 

6



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: April 2, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

Comm. Salmon made motion to direct County Manager to go ahead and bid out for site prep for Senior Center 
and Recreation projects to include all wooded area between Senior Center, Animal Control, and Recreation on 
Hwy. 212, Luke seconded; (After some discussion, Comm. Salmon withdrew his motion). 

Robert Jordan, Engineer recommended get a plan of where you want buildings to go, need to use a planner or 
architect. 

Comm. Salmon made motion to direct the County Engineer and County Manager to develop a rough sketch 
plan to get a bid out and implement a plan, Henry seconded; (After some discussion, Comm. Salmon withdrew 
his motion). 

Comm. Henry made motion to follow the recommendation of the County Engineer to get a sketching of that slat 
of land and location of buildings so we know where to go after that, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 

County Attorney Items: 

Atty. Ozburn noted that he will need a Executive Session to discuss potential litigation. 

County Manager Items: 

Mr. Benton noted that he will hold off on striping until the Work Session. 

Mr. Benton noted he has met with department heads on budget requests, the Budget Work Session is scheduled 
for April 16th. 

Legislative Update: 

FLPA a final deal was approved that has to go to Governor for bill to sign, if it is signed there will be 
referendum on ballot. 

Comm. Pennamon asked County Manager to send bill to Commissioners. 

Comm. Salmon noted he would like to know how our State Representatives voted on that. 

Citizens Comments: 

Tracy Norton and seniors:  Willie Marks, thanked Comm. Henry for allowing senior to fish and joining them. 
Mr. Marks noted they will have a big fish fry and Cook-Out on April 13th and invited Board members to come. 

Gloria Williams, Mary Sanders, and Dorothy Johnson gave thanks for the new van. 

Executive Session: 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to go into Executive Session at 6:53 p.m. to discuss potential litigation and 
Courthouse Security, Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to come out of Executive Session at 7:46 p.m., Salmon seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

Adjourn: 

7



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: April 2, 2018– Regular Meeting  
 

Comm. Jernigan made motion to adjourn at 7:47 p.m., Salmon seconded; passed unanimously. 

 

___________________________ 

Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 

8



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: April 16, 2018– Work Session  
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

April 16, 2018 

Work Session Minutes 

6:00 P.M. 

Comm. Pennamon called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Chairman, Carl Pennamon, Bruce Henry, Don Jernigan, and Vice-
Chairman, Craig Salmon.  Doug Luke was absent.  

Staff Present: Mike Benton, County Manager, Clerk, Sharon Robinson, and Sheriff Donnie Pope. 

Pledge of Allegiance: 

Invocation: 

Sheriff, Donnie Pope 

Comm. Pennamon noted this is a Work Session on FY 2019 Budget. 

Comm. Henry noted he has received phone calls from taxpayers whose property assessments 
have gone up 21%, so if we are going to do this, we need to look at it as closely as we can, to try 
and give these people some relief. 

Comm. Pennamon noted we have to explain to the people because of re-evaluation the values 
have gone up. We have no control over values, but we do control the budget, and we also have to 
look at the needs of the county. 

Mr. Benton noted we have invited the Tax Assessor to meetings in the past to elaborate on this 

Comm. Jernigan noted he would like to get pay raises for County employees; possibly cost of 
living and merit.  If possible he would like to rollback the millage rate some, but at the same time 
Department Heads are going to have to work hard on cutting their budgets. 

Comm. Salmon noted he agrees with rollback. Has asked for multi-year budgets and we don’t 
have one. 

Mr. Benton reviewed the FY 2019 Budget Books with Commissioners noting the Tax Digest, 
Revenue projections at 15.904 rollback rate will produce revenue of $10,168,169; and the current 
millage rate of 16.446 will produce revenue of $10,394,884. 

9



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes: April 16, 2018– Work Session  
 

Mr. Benton reviewed the requested budgets from departments.  The FY20019 requests total 
$11,067.743 which is a 10.2% from last year.  

Mr. Benton reviewed the Debt Service.   

Comm. Salmon questioned why deb service is increasing. 

Mr. Benton noted there is a balloon payment approaching on the motor graders we are leasing. 

Comm. Pennamon encouraged board members to study the budget books and come back next 
week ready to discuss options. 

Comm. Pennamon declared the Work Session closed at 6:43 p.m. 

 

___________________________ 

Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 

10



 

 

Consent Agenda – Item 2 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  May 7, 2018 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
Summary: 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and approval to 
process the checks. 
 
Background: 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve processing of check #’s 052690 - 053003 
  

11



 

 

Old Business – Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: 911 Authority 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: 911 Radio Communication Update – Transcom Final Payment 
 
Summary:  
 
Phase 1 - Completed on 12/18/2017 

 Reduce interference caused by equipment at the 911 Center 
 Install Combiner and Multi coupler which contains the Crystal 
 Remove wiring from radio consoles and rewire to base radios in server room 
 Remove all antennas from top of the building and radio tower 
 Replace with two new antennas and new coax cable 
 Repair and correct ground wiring in the sever room  
 March 14, replaced Cisco VPN Router at the Waxwing Site 
 March 30th, replaced the APC UPS Battery Backup & Pigtail at the Hillsboro Site 

 
Background: 
Transcom engineer Chris Strength worked with Kenwood Corporation to identify our current radio coverage 
and presented a three phase proposal to the 911 Authority Board based on his recommendation to 
fix/improve many of the interference issues of communication between dispatchers, officers, and emergency 
personnel.  
 
Cost: 
$35,228.99  Partial Cost: $17,614.49   
 
County Manager recommended the following funding sources. 
 
911 Authority Fund Balance    $10,000 
Impact Fees Sheriff Department   $14,074.48 
Impact Fees Fire Rescue    $5868.91 
Impact Fees 911 Authority    $5285.60 
Total Funds Used     $35,228.99 
 
The first payment of $17,614.49 was prorated to the listed funding sources. 
The second and final payment will be prorated to the listed funding sources. 
 
Recommended Motion: 
The Jasper County Joint 911 Authority Board is requesting that the Board of Commissioners approve the final 
payment of the Transcom Phase 1 bill(s) in the amount of $17,614.49  
  

12



Statement

Date

4/30/2018

To:

JASPER COUNTY 911
Attn:  Betty Jump
1571 GA 212
Monticello, GA 31064

T ran s  C o m m  Se rv ice s , In c .

Griffin, GA 30223

Amount Due

$17,614.49

Amount Enc.

CURRENT

0.00

1-30 DAYS PAST DUE

0.00

31-60 DAYS PAST DUE

0.00

61-90 DAYS PAST DUE

0.00

OVER 90 DAYS PAST
DUE

17,614.49

Amount Due

$17,614.49

Phone # 770-227-2200

Fax # 770-227-2860

John@transcommservices.com

www.TransCommServices.com

Date Transaction Amount Balance

11/08/2017 INV #14575-P. Due 12/08/2017. Orig. Amount $26,223.99. 17,614.49 17,614.49

13



 

 

Old Business – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Public Works 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: 2012 SPLOST Public Works Equipment –Road Broom, Cracker Sealer, Flat Bed    
  Approval to Seek Bids 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Staff desires to prepare and send out bids for the following equipment: 
 
Road Construction Broom 
Crack Sealer 
Flat Bed 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
Jasper County needs to procure a road construction broom to work with the chip sealing equipment the County 
owns. This is more cost efficient than renting a broom. 
 
Jasper County needs to procure a crack sealer and flatbed truck for the preservation of paved roads. 
 
 
Cost: 
 
To Be Determined 
 
Funded by the 2012 SPLOST Fund 
 
Current 2012 SPLOST Public Works Available Balance - $ 591,166 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approval for Staff to prepare and send out bids for a road construction broom, crack sealer and a flatbed truck 
to be funded by the 2012 SPLOST Fund. 
  

14



 

 

Old Business – Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Senior Center CDBG Project Update and Approval to Bid 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Michael Turner with the architectural firm of JMA Architecture, Inc. will provide an update on the Senior 
Center CDBG Project. 
 
Update will include: 
Final Construction Plans 
Bid Documents 
Budget Overview 
 
 
Background: 
 
Jasper County applied for and received a CDBG grant to renovate and add an addition to the Senior Center. 
 
 
Cost: 
 
CDBG -   $750,000 
County  match -   $22,500 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve final construction plans and bid documents to be sent out to contractors for the CDBG Senior Center 
Project. 
  

15



 

 

Old Business – Item 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Roads and Bridges 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: 2018 LMIG Project Selection Approval to Seek Bids 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Staff needs final projects list for bid preparation for 2018 LMIG Program Funds. 
 
 
Staff was asked to analyze spot milling, patching and asphalt overlay compared to full depth reclamation for 
2.52 miles road section of Post Rd beginning north of Bowden Rd and proceeding north for approximately 2.52 
miles to Smith Brock Rd. 
 
Results: 
Spot milling, patching and asphalt overlay on 2.52 miles for existing 20 ft. road width - $766,743 
Full Depth Reclamation for 2.52 miles widened to 22 ft. - $713,428 
 
Best option for this section of Post Rd would be full depth reclamation. 
 
Background: 
 
December 4, 2017 BOC Board meeting approved 2018 GDOT LMIG Application Submittal for Full Depth 
Reclamation of 2.52 miles of Post Rd beginning north of Bowden Rd and proceeding north for approximately 
2.52 miles to Smith Brock Rd. 
 
Cost: 
 
Estimate: 
 
GDOT 2018 LMIG to Jasper County - $546,259.70 
County Required 30% Match -   $163,877.91 
Total       $710,137.61 
 
County match will be funded by the 2012 SPLOST Fund 
Current 2012 SPLOST Roads and Bridges Available Balance - $471,430 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Board Decision 
  

16



 

 

 
Old Business – Item 5: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: FY 2019 Budget Discussion 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Refer to FY 2019 Budget Workbook 
 
 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
  

17



 

 

New Business – Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Jasper County Health Department 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Jasper County Health Department Board Appointment – Wiley Jordan 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Dr. Wiley Jordan’s term expired on 12-31-2017. 
 
Christa McMillan confirmed with Dr. Jordan that he has agreed to continue serving on the board. 
 
The new term is 1-1-2018 thru 12-31-2023. 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Jasper County Health Department Board is comprised of 7 members. 
 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
No Cost 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve Dr. Wiley Jordan be appointed to continue serving as a Director on the Jasper County Health 
Department Board, term to run from 1-1-2018 thru 12-31-2023. 
  

18



 

 

New Business – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Upper Ocmulgee River RC&D Council Appointment – Jasper County Extension    
 Agent Charlie Todd 
 
 
Summary:  
 
The Board needs to appoint someone to the Upper Ocmulgee River Board to replace past County Extension 
Agent, Trey Gafnea.  
 
Recommendation is to appoint Mr. Charlie Todd, our newly hired County Extension Agent. Mr. Todd has 
agreed to serve on this Board.   
 
Mr. Todd is unable to attend tonight. He is attending training in Griffin, GA. 
 
 
Background: 
 
Jasper County BOC is responsible for appointing two members to the Upper Ocmulgee River RC&D Council. 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
None 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Appoint Charlie Todd to the Upper Ocmulgee River RC&D Council Board 
 
 
  

19



 

 

New Business – Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Georgia State Defense Force Request for Use of County Facilities 
 
 
Summary:  
 
The Georgia State Defense Force is requesting the use of the following two Jasper County facilities with stated 
use, dates and times. 
 
Fire Station #1 Training Classroom – will be used for classroom training for disaster chain saw debris clearing. 
Saturday, May 19, 2018 from 0700 to 1200. 
 
Landfill Borrow Pit – will be used for field training for disaster chain saw debris clearing. Saturday, May 19, 
2018 from 1300 to 1700 and Sunday, May 20 from 0800 to 1700. 
 
Instructors are volunteer, no pay involved. 
 
Each participant and instructor will be required to sign a release of reliability letter for the course. 
 
 
Background: 
 
Georgia State Defense Force assists state and local governments and civilian organizations to assure the welfare 
and safety of the citizens of Georgia as well as providing support as required to other agencies of the Georgia 
Department of Defense. 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
No cost 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
  

20



21



22



GENERAL RELEASE AND WAIVER 

 

Personally appeared the undersigned before an officer authorized by law to administer 

oaths, and upon being duly sworn, does hereby swear, affirm, state, warrant, represent and 

covenant to the following: 

 

RELEASE AND WAIVER: I, _____________________________________, being of lawful age and 

competent to enter into this Agreement, on behalf of myself, the members of my family, or 

anyone who may individually or on my behalf or my estate, or any third-party in any capacity, in 

exchange for my participation in CHAIN SAW TRAINING (“Training”) to be held May 19, 2018 

and May 20, 2018 at the Jasper County Landfill located at 544 Ted Sauls Road, Monticello, 

Georgia 31064 and/or my use of the facilities, property, and services provided, I do hereby 

release, remise and forever discharge The State of Georgia, The Georgia State Defense Force, The 

Georgia Department of Defense, Jasper County, Georgia, the City of Monticello, Georgia and their 

elected or appointed officials, officers, successors and assigns, heirs, executors, administrators, 

insurers, and all other persons, firms, and corporations (the "Releasees") of and from any and 

all claims, demands, rights, and causes of action of whatsoever kind and nature, arising from or 

which may arise from, and by reason of any and all known and unknown circumstance, 

specifically including, but not limited to, foreseen and unforeseen bodily and personal injuries, 

loss of life, damage to property, claims for loss of consortium, loss of service claims, and the 

consequences thereof, resulting from or which may result from from my participation the above-

described Training. 

 

ASSUMPTION OF THE RISK: I recognize that there are certain inherent risks associated with the 

above-described Training and I assume full responsibility for any foreseen and unforeseen 

bodily and personal injuries, damage to property, claims for loss of consortium, loss of service 

claims, or any other claims that I may have or may be presented, and the consequences thereof 

resulting from my participation the above-described Training whether caused by the fault of 

myself, the Releasees, the participants, or any other third-party. 

 

NO DURESS: I agree and acknowledge that I am under no pressure or duress to sign this Waiver 

and that I have been given a reasonable opportunity to review it before signing. 

 

ENFORCEABILITY: The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Release and 

Waiver, whether standing alone or as applied to a particular occurrence or circumstance, shall 

not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Release and Waiver. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand(s) and seal this ________ day of 

___________________, 2018. 

 

(Signature appears on following page) 

 

23



______________________________________________________ 

      Participant  

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 

 

________ day of ______________, 2018. 

 

 

__________________________________  

Notary Public, Georgia 

24



 

 

New Business – Item 6: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Tax Assessor 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Tax Assessor - Freeport Exemption Resolution 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Freeport is an exemption allowed on manufactured goods produced in Jasper County. 
 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
The exemption was approved by Jasper County voters in 1992. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
  

25



THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

RESOLUTION NO.  – 05.07.2018 

The undersigned clerk of The Board of Commissioners of Jasper County, Georgia, a public body corporate and 
politic and an instrumentality of the State of Georgia, does hereby certify that the following resolution was 
passed at a duly called meeting of the Board of Commissioners which was held on May 7, 2018 during which 
meeting the following named commissioners were present, Carl Pennamon, Chairman, Craig Salmon, Vice-
Chair, Bruce Henry, William “Don” Jernigan, and Doug Luke. 

 

RESOLUTION 

That the Board of Commissioners having previously called for a public referendum to vote on the issue of 
certain ad valorem tax relief or exemptions generally referred to as “Freeport”; and  

WHEREAS, said referendum was held on July 21, 1992; and  

WHEREAS, the voters of Jasper County, Georgia passed and approved by majority vote all three (3) classes of 
Freeport as identified by O.C.G.A sec 48-5-48.2 and, 

WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. sec 48-5-48.2 requires the governing authority, upon approval of the electorate, to 
establish the percentage by which the designated classes of personal property “Freeport” shall be exempt from 
taxation; and 

WHEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of Jasper County do hereby resolve to grant Freeport Exemptions 
as the following percentages for the following classes of personal property; 

Section 48-5-48.2(b)(1) “Inventory of goods in process or manufacture or production shall be set at 
100%. 

Section 48-5-48.2(b)(2) “Inventory of finished goods manufactured or produced within the state in the 
ordinary course of the taxpayer’s manufacturing or production business when held by the original 
manufacturer or producer of such finished goods” shall be set at 100%. 

Section 48-5-48.2(b)(3) “Inventory of finished goods which on January 1, are stored in a warehouse, 
dock or wharf, whether public or private, and which are destined for shipment to a final destination 
outside this state and inventory of finished goods which are shipped into this state from outside this state 
and stored for transshipment to a final destination outside this state” shall be set at 100%. 

This resolution shall be effective for applicable inventories held as of January 1, 1993 and thereafter pursuant to 
O.C.G.A. sc. 48-5-48.2(e)(1). 

Resolved this 7th day of May, 2018 

 

Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

 

__________________________________    ______________________________ 

Clerk,          Carl Pennamon, Chairman 

26



 

 

New Business – Item 7: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Tax Assessor 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Tax Assessor 2018 Digest Overview 
 
 
Summary:  
 
The Jasper County Tax Assessor’s Office will provide information on the 2018 Digest changes. 
 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
No Cost 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
No Recommendation Needed. 
  

27



 

 

New Business – Item 8: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Courthouse Security 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Courthouse Security Discussion 
 
 
Summary:  
 
The Jasper County Sheriff’s Office will provide an update on security of the Jasper County Courthouse located 
at 126 W. Greene St. Monticello, GA 31064. 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Jasper County Courthouse located at 126 W. Greene St. Monticello, GA 31064 houses Superior Court, 
Probate Court, Magistrate Court, Juvenile Court and other Courts, Constitutional Officers and Staff as well as 
other Governmental Offices and Staff. 
 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
To Be Determined 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Board Decision 
  

28



 

 

New Business – Item 9: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Fire Rescue 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Fire Rescue Budget Amendment – Funded by Georgia Trauma Commission Grants 
 
 
Summary: Jasper County Fire Rescue has applied for the Georgia Trauma Commission Related Equipment 
Grant Program and has been awarded. A second grant has also been opened for this fiscal year which both are 
noncompetitive.  
 
 
Background: 
Jasper County Fire Rescue applied for grant in February 2018 from the Georgia Trauma Commission which 
provides monies for approved EMS trauma related equipment with the amount of monies based of off number 
of ambulances a service operates. On April 23, 2018, Jasper County Fire Rescue received an email with Georgia 
Trauma Commission re-authorizing monies for second round of grant money to purchase EMS trauma related 
equipment. EMS equipment needs to be purchased by June 30, 2018. Equipment list is submitted with the grant 
application. 
 
  Round 1 Total - $ 3223.15 
  Round 2 Total - $1477.58 
 
Cost: 
 
 Round 1 
     3- Ferno Scoop Stretcher @ $917.65 each  
   3- SureTemp Plus 690 Thermometers @ 249.53 each 
 Round 1 Total – 3501.54  
 
 Round 2 
   3- Child Restraint System @ $698.75 each 
 Round 2 Total - $2096.25 
 
Jasper County Fire Rescue has the remaining monies in operational supplies to cover the difference of $897.06. 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
Approve increase in the Fire Rescue Budget Capital Outlay for $4700.73 to purchase equipment listed above, 
from monies received and to be received from the Georgia Trauma Commission in the amount of $4700.73 
  

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



 

 

New Business – Item 10: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Fire Rescue 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Fire Rescue Budget Amendment – Funded by FM Global Grant 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Jasper County Fire Rescue received a grant from Factory Insurance Company, commonly known as FM Global, 
in the amount of $2513.00. 
 
Approve an increase in the Fire Rescue Capital Outlay Budget in the amount of $2513. 
Budget increase to be used to procure listed items. 
 
Background: 
 
Jasper County Fire Rescue applied for grant from FM Global which provides grants in the areas of arson 
prevention, fire investigations and prefire planning. This grant was awarded on the basis that the equipment 
requested will support the mission property protection. The items that were requested will further support fire 
and arson investigations and prefire planning which is essential for firefighting operations and firefighter safety. 
 
 
Cost: 

1. Nikon D3400 Camera with accessories (Best Buy)  $829.95 
2. Apple I Pad Pro (Best Buy)     $649.00 
3. Combustible Gas Detector (Sirchie)    $406.85 
4. Firescene Pro Software (Firesecene)    $508.00 
5. Case and Keyboard for I Pad (Best Buy)   $113.99 

Total: $ 2507.79 
  

There is no matching funds need and the grant pays 100 percent. 
 
 
Cost: 
 
No Cost to Jasper County BOC 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve increasing Fire Rescue Budget Capital Outlay for $2513.00 funded from the FM Global Grant 
received in the amount of $2513. 
  

43



 

 

New Business – Item 11: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Peachtree Recovery Services, Inc. - Property Damage Claims Recovery Service 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Peachtree Recovery Services, Inc. is a service company that identifies potential County property claims through 
reviews of online accident reporting data, files for insurance, retains a fee for monies collected, then remits the 
proceeds to the County. 
 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
Find Documents Included: 
Statement of Work 
Sample Service Contract 
Sole Source Service Justification 
Client References 
 
 
 
Cost: 
 
Peachtree Recovery Services retains a fee for monies collected. 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Board Discussion 
  

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



 

 

New Business – Item 12: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Emergency Management Administration 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Jasper County Tornado Siren Warning Policy and Maintenance Plan 
 
 
Summary:  
 
 
Warning Policy and Maintenance for the Tornado Sirens in Jasper County.  Conduct a live test page on each 
weather siren on the 1st and 15th of every month at 8:00 am, weather and time permitting.   Have sirens 
maintenance 2 times per year per siren in an annual contract with Loudon Communications, Inc. (Quote is 
attached)  
 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
The dispatchers have normally performed a live test on Wednesday at 12 noon every week, time and weather 
permitting.   
 
Due to console equipment issues, the weekly testing routine was interrupted. After the console equipment issues 
were resolved, weekly testing was not reinstated on a consistent basis. 
 
Consistent and improved confirmation testing is needed to ensure equipment maintains a proper working 
condition. 
 
 
Cost: 
Annual Contract - $1,740.00 – plus any repair parts 
 
Current EMA Available Maintenance Budget - $600 
Funding would require additional EMA Maintenance Budget in the amount of $1140. 
 
 
Recommended Motion:   
 
Jasper County EMA recommends the Board of Commissioners change the live testing of all sirens to the 1st and 
15th of every month at 8:00 am, time and weather permitting. EMA also recommends to have Loudoun 
Communications, Inc. via contract to service and maintain the sirens. 
  

57



5680 Stitcher Court

Douglasville GA 30134

Phone: (770) 948-9566

Fax: (770) 948-9532

Two-Way Radios * Data Communications * 911 Consoles * Sirens

Date: 4/27/2018By: Dianna Beckstedt Email: Dianna@Loudouncomm.net No: LC- 8189

Sales Proposal

Qty Model Description Price ea. Total

5  MC Annual Contract- Weather Siren Maintenance per siren $348.00 $1,740.00

INCLUDES 2 times per year 10 point preventive maintenance

check, service calls and labor for issues or repairs

     through out the year.

RATE $29.00 per month per siren.  Repair part are extra.

Invoicing would be on monthly, quarterly, semi-annual

    annual basis depending on county discretion

Quotation To:

Company: Jasper County 911

Address: PO Box 670

Monticello GA 31064

Attn: Betty Jump

Phone: (706) 717-1326

Fax: (706) 468-8287

Email: JasperCountyEMA@bellsouth.net

Equipment $1,740.00

Sales Tax $0.00

Installation $0.00

Deposit $0.00

Total Sale $1,740.00

(Pricing valid for 30 days from proposal date)

(Shipping may be additional if not included in Proposal)

58



 

 

New Business – Item 13: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Finance 
 
Date:   May 7, 2018 
 
Subject: Provide Finance Director with Online Banking Approval 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Dennis Pate has been hired as Jasper County’s Finance Director. 
 
Jasper County Finance Director Dennis Pate needs online banking credentials to allow the following: 
 
View Accounts 
Transfers within County Accounts 
Limited Wire Transfer to County Payroll Funding Only 
Stop Payment Authority 
Positive Pay Authority 
 
 
Background: 
 
The Board of Commissioners are the only authorized persons with signature authority. 
 
Providing Jasper County Finance Director with limited online banking access maintains that policy. 
 
 
Cost: 
 
No Cost 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve Jasper County Finance Director Dennis Pate to have online banking credentials with Bank of 
Monticello and Hamilton State Bank with limited access as described. 
 

59




